



Project Feasibility Analysis

Sydney North Program

Prepared for Ausgrid January 2023



Table of Contents

1.	Exec	utive Summary	3
	1.1.	Scope	3
	1.2.	Key Findings & Recommendation	3
	1.3.	Report Authors	3
2.	Intro	duction	4
	2.1.	Instructions	4
	2.2.	Ausgrid Property & Accommodation Strategy	4
	2.3.	Overview of the Proposed Projects	4
3.	Horn	sby Depot	5
	3.1.	Location	5
	3.2.	Surrounding Developments	5
	3.3.	Legal	5
	3.4.	Landholdings	6
	3.5.	Improvements	6
	3.6.	Environmental	6
	3.7.	Planning Controls	7
4.	Thor	nleigh Depot	9
	4.1.	Potential Location	9
	4.2.	Site Requirements	9
5.	Finar	ncial Analysis and Assessment	10
	5.1.	Scenarios	10
	5.2.	Key Inputs	10
	5.3.	Financial Outcomes	10
	5.4.	Non-Financial Outcomes	10
	5.5.	Recommendation	11
	5.6.	Assumptions and Limitations	12
6.	Appe	endices	13
	6.1.	Sydney North Program Financial Model	13



1. Executive Summary

1.1. Scope

JLL has been engaged by Ausgrid to undertake feasibility analyses for a selection of major property projects. This project feasibility analysis relates to the Sydney North Program.

1.2. Key Findings & Recommendation

Based on the financial assessment we have undertaken, as well as our non-financial observations, we recommend proceeding with Scenario 2 - Implement Sydney North Program. This scenario results in a superior financial outcome compared with Scenario 1, as well as much more non-financial benefits being realised impacting operations, safety, land use conflicts and potential disposals of resulting surplus land.

Delivery of this scenario would result in the following capital expenditure (capex) over the FY25-29 period to deliver the new facilities. The capex shown in the table below includes the acquisition cost of a Thornleigh site, cost to construct new facilities and the relocation costs for the Sydney North Program. It does not include minor ongoing and reactive capital works required at the site in the lead up or post construction.

Table 1: FY25-29 Proposed Capex of Recommended Scenario

Nominal \$million	FY25	FY26	FY27	FY28	FY29	Total FY25-29
Capex						

1.3. Report Authors





2. Introduction

2.1. Instructions

JLL has been engaged by Ausgrid to undertake feasibility analysis related to their Sydney North Program (further details provided below in Section 2.3. The feasibility assessment in this report includes both financial and non-financial analysis. This information is targeted at informing Ausgrid of the least cost solution to addressing the risks associated with non-network property assets that are declining in condition as they reach an advanced age.

2.2. Ausgrid Property & Accommodation Strategy

Ausgrid are continuing a program of consolidating and modernising their non-network property portfolio. The priority is to ensure they provide safe, secure and fit-for-purpose workplaces for staff that allows for the provision of timely and reliable services to meet customer needs. Further, as a consequence of more agile working practices adopted during COVID-19 and a significant downsizing of the workforce over the last 10 years, Ausgrid's property footprint is currently under-utilised. Over the course of FY22 the transformation and strategic property teams have conducted a review of all Ausgrid sites being utilised to accommodate staff with the purpose of the review to:

- Maximise utilisation and improve financial outcomes;
- Maintain and improve operational performance and ensure Ausgrid's sites are set up for the future target operating model;
- Support improvements in Ausgrid's culture by enhancing the spaces their teams work in.

Ausgrid has identified the need for a number of projects involving the replacement, upgrading or refurbishment of property during the five-year forecast period. In particular, Ausgrid has an ageing property portfolio and priority has been given to those assets which are of greater safety and security concern and are in the most urgent need of replacement. A selection of these projects are the subject of the analysis we are now undertaking, as described in the instructions above.

2.3. Overview of the Proposed Projects

Ausgrid have developed a Sydney North Program which includes the delivery of new developments enabling concentration of uses and decommissioning of other sites. The following is a summary of the proposed interrelated works:

- Deliver a new Thornleigh Depot in the broad Thornleigh industrial area.
- A decommissioning and closure of the majority of the Hornsby Depot.

The key Ausgrid drivers for the proposed development of the Sydney North Program include:

- Accommodate the workforce and critical operations in suitable facilities that align with Ausgrid Accommodation Guidelines.
- The current Hornsby Depot is larger than required, in poor condition and not fit-for-purpose. Relocating Hornsby staff to a New Thornleigh Depot provides greater value for money for Ausgrid and its employees). This will provide a cost-effective solution to ensure service delivery is uninterrupted across the Sydney North and Hornsby regions). Further, this will result in reduced operational costs through reduction of property footprint
- This overarching strategy will help to improve the culture through better facilities, standardisation of practices, and grouping of teams to enhance collaboration (knowledge sharing, communication, problem solving)
- Appropriately manage lifetime property costs.
- Address current and future growth demands in the Sydney North / Hornsby region.
- Potential for surplus land to be disposed after the completion of works (re-zoning and Council approval would be required).



3. Hornsby Depot

3.1. Location

Ausgrid's Hornsby Depot is situated at 51-57 Bridge Road, Hornsby NSW 2077. Ausgrid also own an on-grade car park immediately opposite the site (50-56 Bridge Rd).

Figure 1: Ausgrid's Hornsby Depot



Source: SIX Maps,

3.2. Surrounding Developments

The surrounding developments comprise of a mix of residential dwellings, mainly subject to 'R2 – Low Density Residential' and 'R4 – High Density Residential' zoning. To the east of the site, there is industrial zoning consisting of 'IN2 – Light Industrial' and 'IN1 – General Industrial'. To the west and south, there is some 'B3 – Commercial Core', 'B4 – Mixed Use', and 'B5 – Business Development'. Ausgrid own a vacant parcel of land immediately opposite the site (50-56 Bridge Rd)

3.3. Legal

Title Details	Depot: Lot 4/503347, Lot 1/504079, Lots C, D/416795, Lot B/324378, Lot C, D/357216 & Lot 8 (Pt A)/3505 Car park: Lot 1 & 2/1082720 & Lot 6 & 7/22112
Registered Owner/s	Alpha Distribution Ministerial Holding Corporation
Encumbrances	We have not verified the existence or not of encumbrances on title
Property No. (NSW Valuer General (VG))	
VG Assessed Land Value	



3.4. Landholdings

Address	51-57 Bridge Road & 50-56 Bridge Rd Hornsby NSW 2077
Site Details	Depot: Irregular shaped allotment, which is accessible from Denison Street and Bridge Road Car Park: Irregular shaped allotment, which is accessible from Bridge Road
Land Area	Depot: 16,744 sqm Car Park: 2,989 sqm
Services	All standard services (electricity, water, telephone and sewerage) are assumed to be available to the site
PRP Online No.	820646

3.5. Improvements

Subject's Present Use	The Hornsby Depot serves Sydney's Upper North Shore region with facilities on the site including office accommodation, storage warehouses and workshops. 50-56 Bridge Rd is currently being used as a car park
Building Age	Range between 31 and 81 years
Construction Materials	Multi storey brick structure
Gross Floor Area	Depot: 2,774 sqm (BCA Report)
Condition	Poor –There are end-of-life issues and limitations in the accommodation and storage constraints and Building Code of Australia requirements
Other Structures	As noted above, there are various structures currently on the site used for a range of activities

3.6. Environmental

Contamination	JLL have been provided with some site-specific information on potential contamination risks with this site – we refer the reader to the report by Progressive Risk Management (PRM) titled 'Asbestos and Lead Building Materials Audit' dated July 2018. Within this report 21 items were identified to have 'Moderate Priority Risk Rating' and a further 51 were identified to 'Low Priority Risk Rating' Further given the historic use of the site we consider there to be potential for additional contamination
Flooding	JLL has had reference to the Hornsby Local Environmental Plan (LEP) 2013. The subject property does not appear to be impacted given it is not within a flood zone, nor a flood planning area



3.7. Planning Controls

3.7. Planning Contro	
Local Authority	Hornsby Council
Planning Instrument	Hornsby Local Environmental Plan (LEP) 2013
Zoning	SP2 - Infrastructure : Electricity Transmission & Distribution, R4: High Density Residential SP2 Electricity Transmission or Distribution PENSON S PULBROOK AD IN2 RE1 NORTHCOTE RD
Objectives of Zone	 SP2 - Infrastructure : Electricity Transmission & Distribution 1. Objectives of zone To provide for infrastructure and related uses. To prevent development that is not compatible with or that may detract from the provision of infrastructure. 2. Permitted without consent Environmental protection works; Roads; Water reticulation systems 3. Permitted with consent The purpose shown on the Land Zoning Map, including any development that is ordinarily incidental or ancillary to development for that purpose 4. Prohibited Any development not specified in item 2 or 3 R4: High Density Residential 1. Objectives of zone To provide for the housing needs of the community within a high density residential environment. To provide a variety of housing types within a high density residential environment. To enable other land uses that provide facilities or services to meet the day to day needs of residents. 2. Permitted without consent Environmental protection works 3. Permitted with consent Boarding houses; Building identification signs; Business identification signs; Centre-based child care facilities; Community facilities; Dwelling houses;



	Emergency services facilities; Flood mitigation works; Home-based child care; Home occupations; Neighbourhood shops; Oyster aquaculture; Places of public worship; Recreation areas; Recreation facilities (indoor); Recreation facilities (outdoor); Residential flat buildings; Respite day care centres; Roads; Shop top housing; Water reticulation systems 4. Prohibited
	 Any other development not specified in item 2 or 3
Conformity	Upon a review of the applicable planning controls listed above, the subject site appears to conform to the LEP's controls
Heritage	JLL did not find evidence of the subject property being affected by heritage considerations
Surrounding Zones	The site is primarily surrounded by R2 – Low Density Residential and R4 – High Density Residential.



4. Thornleigh Depot

4.1. Potential Location

Provided in the figure below is the indicative location of interest for the Thornleigh Depot as identified by Ausgrid, being broadly within the Thornleigh industrial areas.

Figure 2: Potential Location – Thornleigh Depot (Required Zonings Highlighted)



Source: JLL MapIT

4.2. Site Requirements

The indicative site requirements for the Thornleigh Depot are summarised below:

- Zoning: IN1 General Industrial, IN2 Light Industrial, SP2 Infrastructure
- Land Parcel Size: Indicatively ~4,000 sqm
- Greenfield/Brownfield: Both acceptable

In addition, there will likely be other requirements related to transport connectivity, site access, security and infrastructure.



5. Financial Analysis and Assessment

5.1. Scenarios

In undertaking our analysis, we have had consideration to the scenarios described below. We believe these scenarios capture the appropriate and realistic options that could be undertaken to resolve the issues / achieve the benefits identified within Section 2.3.

Scenario 1 - Base Case

This scenario assumes the continuation of current operations at the Hornsby Depot. A refurbishment is assumed across Hornsby Depot given its age, BCA and hazard issues.

Scenario 2 - Implement Sydney North Program

This scenario assumes the development of a new depot at Thornleigh, enabling significantly reduced operations at Hornsby (with the retention of the substation). This scenario includes divestment of any surplus lands once operations are consolidated.

5.2. Key Inputs

Provided below are key inputs related to costs, values, as well as other model assumptions. For further details, refer to the full financial model within the appendices.

- Existing improvements and conditions based on BCA and Hazard Reports (where available), as well as plans
- Fair value of sites as assessed by Preston Rowe Paterson (PRP)
- Site acquisitions indicative figures based on nearby evidence
- Major capital works estimated by JLL and based on site conditions and future requirements
- Growth rates for both costs and values costs adopting CPI forecasts provided by Ausgrid, values assuming a premium to CPI
- Discount rate based on Ausgrid Regulated Weighted Average Cost of Capital
- Ongoing capital works based on typical ongoing capital works for new facilities by broad use type and an assumed premium for existing facilities
- Operating Expenses (Opex) excluding land tax and council rates for existing facilities based on historic charge, for new facilities utilising historic charge from recently completed Beresfield Depot
- Land tax and council rates based on historic charges and proportion adjustments to land area where divestments are assumed

5.3. Financial Outcomes

Based on the assumptions outlined, the following rounded Net Present Value (NPV) financial outcomes have been derived by scenario.

• Scenario 1 NPV of -\$25,900,000

• Scenario 2 NPV of -\$16,200,000

5.4. Non-Financial Outcomes

In addition to the financial analysis undertaken, we have also had consideration to some of the non-financial implications. We have summarised the scenarios into advantages and disadvantages in the following table.



Advantages Disadvantages

Scenario 1 - Base Case

- This scenario improves the current safety conditions of the sites by looking to address the Building Code of Australia requirements and other hazard issues through refurbishments.
- Continued operations at current site enables no disruption to current work patterns i.e., staff accessibility to location.
- Maintains proximity and capacity to support the Sydney North Region.
- Addresses current and future growth demands of the Sydney North Region.

- The current property footprint exceeds operational requirements, is in varying states of repair and is no longer considered fit for purpose.
- This scenario will not resolve ongoing property end of life issues.
- This scenario will result in continued operation from not fit for purpose facility with a larger than required landholdings surrounded by conflicting uses i.e., residential.
- Disruptions will likely occur with the proposed refurbishment works while continuing to operate from the same location.

Scenario 2 - Implement Sydney North Program

- The developments of the Thornleigh Depot would provide the potential to create a more efficient, fitfor-purpose facility which will better meet the needs of Ausgrid in the short to medium term.
- This scenario would address some of the property end-of-life issues.
- A relocation to Thornleigh industrial area avoids the challenges that have arisen as part of being located within a primarily residential locality. Being situated within an industrial precinct also future proofs the facility from short to medium term residential rezoning pressure. The area also benefits from nearby access to major arterial roads including the Pacific Highway and the M1 Motorway.
- This scenario provides the opportunity for a partial divestment of the existing depot in the medium term for its likely highest and best use (subject to re-zoning and council approval).
- Maintains proximity and capacity to support the Sydney North Region.
- Addresses current and future growth demands of the Sydney North Region.

Disruptions will likely occur as part of the relocation of operations.

5.5. Recommendation

Based on the financial assessment we have undertaken, as well as our non-financial observations, we recommend proceeding with Scenario 2 - Implement Sydney North Program. This scenario results in a superior financial outcome compared with Scenario 1, as well as more non-financial benefits being realised impacting operations, safety, land use conflicts and potential disposals of resulting surplus land.

Delivery of this scenario would result in the following capital expenditure (capex) over the FY25-29 period to deliver the new facilities. The capex shown in the table below includes the acquisition cost of a Thornleigh site, cost to construct new



facilities and the relocation costs for the Sydney North Program. It does not include minor ongoing and reactive capital works required at the site in the lead up or post construction.

Table 2: FY25-29 Proposed Capex of Recommended Scenario

Nominal \$million	FY25	FY26	FY27	FY28	FY29	Total
						FY25-29
Capex						

5.6. Assumptions and Limitations

We have been provided with various assumptions, historic costs and other information from Ausgrid, this includes future building size requirements, historic operational costs, valuation figures, amongst other information. Due to the nature of the sites, facilities and operations - it is challenging to independently verify these figures. As such, should any of these be proven incorrect this would have implications on the financial analysis provided.



6. Appendices

6.1. Sydney North Program Financial Model



Sydney North Pr	Sydney North Program										
Indicative Modelling											
		FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 FY 32									
Sites Hornsby Depot Thornleigh Depot	Address Lot Details 51-57 Bridge Road, Hornsby Lot 4/503347, Lot 1/5040 TBD - Broadly Thornleigh area N/A	04079, Lots C, D/416795, Lot B/324378, Lot C, D/357216 & Lot 8 (Pt A)/3505									
Site Areas											
Existing Sites Hornsby Depot	Existing Area 19,733 m2										
New Sites Thornleigh Depot	Area to acquire From To Adopt 4,000 m2 4,000 m2 4,000 m2	Note: Estimated based on built form requirement									
Sites to Divest Hornsby Depot	Divestible Area 15,933 m2	Note: Advised by Ausgrid									
Built Form											
Existing Sites Hornsby Depot	Office Warehouse Workshop Total 1,685 m2 454 m2 635 m2 2,774 m2	Source: BCA Report									
New Sites Thornleigh Depot	Office Warehouse Spoil Bay Total 448 m2 944 m2 500 m2 1,892 m2	Parking (on-grade) Circulation 2,589 m2 Source: TOM Report.									
Site Value											
Existing Sites Hornsby Depot	Fair Value (FY19) Fair Value (Escalated to FY21)										
New Sites Thornleigh Depot	Area \$/sqm of Land Indicative Price 4,000 m2										
All Sites Hornsby Depot Thornleigh Depot	Area \$/sqm of Land Land Value 4,000 m2										
Opex (excl. Land Tax, Council Rates)											
Sites Hornsby Depot Thornleigh Depot	Opex \$/sqm Floor Area (sqm) Opex \$ N/A N/A \$125,161 \$55 1,892 m2 \$103,520	Source: Ausgrid - TOM Stage 2 File FY21 (total opex less land tax & council rates) Note: Utilised \$/sqm of Beresfield									
Land Tax + Council Rates											
Sites Hornsby Depot Thornleigh Depot Hornsby Depot (reduced)	Land Tax	Source: Ausgrid - TOM Stage 2 File FY21 (land tax & council rates) Note: Have assumed 2% of land value for land tax and 0.3% for Council Rates Note: Assumed reduction in land tax and council rates based on reduced land area.									
Major Capital Works											
Scenario 1 Refurbish Hornsby Depot	\$ Cost	Note: Qualifications, inclusions and exclusions provided on separate tab. Rounded cost.									
Scenario 2 Construct Thomleigh Depot	\$ Cost	Note: Qualifications, inclusions and exclusions provided on separate tab. Rounded cost.									
Ongoing Capital Works											
Type Office (New)	\$/sqm Cost (per annum)	Note: Indicative assumption of how much ongoing capex is required over a 10-year period									

Office (New) Warehouse/Workshop (New) Premium for existing Office (Existing) Warehouse/Workshop (Existing)



Note: Indicative assumption of how much ongoing capex is required over a 10-year period

Note: Indicative assumption of how much ongoing capex is required over a 10-year period

Note: Assumed premium for existing buildings as these have not been maintained to the required standard

Hornsby Depot Note: Based on assumed cost outlined above. Thornleigh Depot Note: Based on assumed cost outlined above.

Model Inputs														
Growth														
CPI (for opex)		Source: Ausgrid		3.5%	8.0%	4.8%	2.9%	2.9%	2.9%	2.9%	2.9%	2.5%	2.5%	2.5%
Cumulative			100.0%	103.5%	111.8%	117.1%	120.5%	123.9%	127.5%	131.1%	134.9%	138.3%	141.7%	145.3%
CPI (for relocation & capital works)		Source: Ausgrid			8.0%	4.8%	2.9%	2.9%	2.9%	2.9%	2.9%	2.5%	2.5%	2.5%
Cumulative		-	100.0%	100.0%	108.0%	113.1%	116.4%	119.7%	123.2%	126.7%	130.4%	133.6%	137.0%	140.4%
Value Growth (for divestments) - CPI + x%	1.50%			5.0%	9.5%	6.3%	4.4%	4.4%	4.4%	4.4%	4.4%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%
Cumulative			100.0%	105.0%	115.0%	122.2%	127.5%	133.1%	138.9%	145.0%	151.3%	157.4%	163.7%	170.2%
Value Growth (for LV & acquisitions) - CPI + x%	1.50%				9.5%	6.3%	4.4%	4.4%	4.4%	4.4%	4.4%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%
Cumulative			100.0%	100.0%	109.5%	116.3%	121.4%	126.7%	132.3%	138.1%	144.1%	149.9%	155.9%	162.1%
Risk														
Discount rate (WACC)	3.44%	Source: Ausgrid												
Terminal cap	1.47%	Source: Calculated (see Cap Rate tab)												

Scenario 1 - Base Case														
Description: This scenario assumes the continuation of current operations at the Hornsby Depot. A refurbishment is assumed across Hornsby Depot given its age, BCA and hazard issues.														
O(Excluded Ex	cluded	initial works									
Opex (excl. Land Tax, Council Rates) Hornsby Depot	-\$125,161		-\$125,161	-\$129,539	-\$139,902	-\$146,547	-\$150,760	-\$155,094	-\$159,552	-\$164,139	-\$168,857	-\$173,079	-\$177,406	-\$12,335,411
Land Tax + Council Rates	-\$125,101		-\$125,101	-\$129,559	-\$139,502	-3140,541	-\$150,700	-9133,034	-\$109,002	-\$104,139	-\$100,00 <i>1</i>	-\$113,019	-\$177,400	-\$12,555,411
Hornsby Depot	-\$67,400		-\$67,400	-\$67,400	-\$73,803	-\$78,416	-\$81,846	-\$85,427	-\$89,164	-\$93,065	-\$97,136	-\$101,021	-\$105,062	-\$7,412,098
Major Capital Works	\$31,155		\$ 0.,.00	\$0.,.00	4.0,000	\$10,110	401,010	\$00,121	400,101	\$00,000	\$01,100	\$101,021	\$100,002	\$1,112,000
Refurbish Hornsby Depot														
Ongoing Capital Works														
Hornsby Depot														
Relocation Costs and Other														
N/A														
Divestment Values														
N/A														
Discount & NPV Rounded	3.44%	-\$25,900,000												
Scenario 2 - Implement Sydney North Pro	ogram													
Description: This scenario assumes the development	ent of a new depot at Thornleigh, ena	abling significantly reduced operations at Hornsby (with the	retention of the substation). This scenario in	cludes divestment of a	ny surplus lands onc	e operations are cor	nsolidated.						
			Excluded Ex	cluded		acq. / planning	construction	planning	sale					
Site Acquisition														
Thornleigh Depot		Note: 25% deposit in first FY. No escalation in I	FY25 as price is agreed in	FY24										
Opex (excl. Land Tax, Council Rates)														
Hornsby Depot	-\$125,161		-\$125,161	-\$129,539	-\$139,902	-\$146,547	-\$150,760							
Thornleigh Depot	-\$103,520							-\$128,277	-\$131,965	-\$135,759	-\$139,661	-\$143,153	-\$146,731	-\$10,202,552
Land Tax + Council Rates														
Hornsby Depot	-\$67,400		-\$67,400	-\$67,400	-\$73,803	-\$7 8,416	-\$81,846	-\$85,427	-\$89,164					
Thornleigh Depot	-\$73,600	Note: 50% assumed in first FY, assuming trans	action halfway through			-\$42,815	-\$89,375	-\$93,285	-\$97,366	-\$101,625	-\$106,071	-\$110,314	-\$114,726	-\$8,093,902
Hornsby Depot (reduced)	-\$12,979									-\$17,922	-\$18,706	-\$19,454	-\$20,232	-\$1,427,354
Major Capital Works														
Construct Thornleigh Depot		Note: 12 month project												
Ongoing Capital Works														
Hornsby Depot														
Thornleigh Depot														
Relocation Costs and Other		Mater Assessed and												
Relocation Costs and Other Divestment Values		Note: Assumed cost												
		Note: Oronartian (hassed on site come) of acceler	tad fair value											
Hornsby Depot		Note: Proportion (based on site area) of escalar	leu laif Value											
Discount & NPV Rounded	3.44%	-\$16,200,000												
		. , , ,												

Disclaimer

The material contained in this report is confidential and was provided by JLL to the party to whom it is addressed strictly for the specific purpose to which it refers and no responsibility is accepted to any third party.

Neither JLL nor any of its associates have any other interests (whether pecuniary or not and whether direct or indirect) or any association or relationships with any of its associates that might reasonably be expected to be or have been capable of influencing JLL in providing this report.

Neither the whole of the report nor any part or reference thereto may be published in any document, statement or circular or in any communication with third parties or distributed without JLL's prior written approval.

Whilst the material contained in the report has been prepared in good faith and with due care by JLL, no representations or warranties are made (express or implied) as to the accuracy of the whole or any part of the report.

JLL, its officers, employees, subcontractors and agents shall not be liable (except to the extent that liability under statute or by operation of law cannot be excluded) for any loss, liability, damages or expense suffered by any party resulting from their use of this report.

If a projection has been made in respect of future demand, business trends, property prices, rentals and projected take up rates, such a projection is an estimate only and represents only one possible result therefore should at best be regarded as an indicative assessment of possibilities rather than absolute certainties. The process of making forward projections of such key elements involves assumptions about a considerable number of variables that are acutely sensitive to changing conditions and variations, and any one of which may significantly affect the resulting projections. This must be kept in mind whenever such projections are considered.

JLL is not operating under an Australian Financial Services Licence. The financial analysis and conclusions contained within this report do not purport to represent a valuation in the conventional sense. It is an exercise involving only relatively few variables, such as zoning information and a general knowledge of background market conditions; whereas, a valuation involves a detailed investigation of the property including, where appropriate, the nature of the locality, surrounding properties, full inspection, site peculiarities, the nature, quality and condition of improvements, comparable sales, market trends, yields, competition, design and layout and so on. The market value could be greatly affected by such factors, and by encumbrances, restrictions, or other impediments on Title which have not been considered in this report. Accordingly, the financial analysis contained herein is indicative only and not authoritative. It is merely a precursor to a formal valuation and should not be taken as a substitute for it.







COPYRIGHT © JONES LANG LASALLE IP, INC. 2023.

This publication is the sole property of Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. and must not be copied, reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, either in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc.

The information contained in this publication has been obtained from sources generally regarded to be reliable. However, no representation is made, or warranty given, in respect of the accuracy of this information. We would like to be informed of any inaccuracies so that we may correct them.

Jones Lang LaSalle does not accept any liability in negligence or otherwise for any loss or damage suffered by any party resulting from reliance on this publication.